
   
 

AGENDA 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 17, 2024 

 
I. Opening of meeting at ________________ p.m. by __________________ 
 
 
II. Notation of attendance and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
III. Announcement by presiding officer, pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, 

that 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2022, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 23, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 19, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 15, 2023, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 
 
 
 

Name Position In Out 
Donald S. Riley Chairman   
Michael Booth Vice-Chairman   
David G. Brown  Secretary   
Bryan I. Larco Treasurer   
Susie Morris  Asst. Secretary/ Treas.   
    
Thomas Roguski Executive Director   
Charles J. Fallon   Auditor   
John L. Bonello Counsel   
Lauren Lechner   Engineer    
Jordan Volk  Engineer   
Liz Vieira  Secretary   
    



   
 

IV. Public Participation 
 

Motion by_________________, seconded by ________________ that this item of the 
Agenda be closed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
V  Miscellaneous Suggestions for Good of Authority 
 
 

Motion by_________________, seconded by ________________ that this item of the 
Agenda be closed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
VI. As to Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023  
 

Motion by __________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on 
December 20, 2023, be dispensed with, and that such Minutes be, and they are hereby, 
approved as recorded and circulated. 
  

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 
                 

 
VII. As to Minutes of the Executive Session held on December 20, 2023, if any (NONE) 
 

Motion by ________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Executive Session held on December 20, 2023, be dispensed with, and that 
such Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
VIII. Correspondence 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by ________________, as to items to be received 
and filed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 



   
 

LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

JANUARY 17, 2024 

 
1) Letter dated 12/11/23 received 12/18/23 from Charles Surmonte P.E. & 

L.S., re: Serviceability Request/ Subdivision Application / Block 365 Lot 
4 / 240 Seventh Avenue 

 
2) Letter received 12/20/23 from Charleston Wipes Settlement, re: Legal 

Notice 
 
3) Letter dated 12/22/23 received 12/22/23 from Thomas Roguski to 

Charles Surmonte PE, LS, re: Letter of Service Availability / 240 
Seventh Ave/ Block 365 Lot 4 

 
4) Letter dated 12/20/23 received 12/26/23 from State of New Jersey DEP, 

re: Laboratory Certification Number 13270 
 
5) Copy of letter dated 12/22/23 received 12/26/23 from Colliers 

Engineering to Gary Schecher, Owner, re: Ocean Acre/ 119-129 Franklin 
Ave/ Block 217 Lots 26 & 27 

 
6) Copy of letter dated 12/22/23 received 12/26/23 from Colliers 

Engineering to Phil Saada, Manager, re: 333-345 Second Avenue 
Proposed Townhouse Development/ Bathhaus, LLC 

 
7) Certified Notice of Application dated 12/21/23 received 12/28/23 to the 

City of Long Branch, re: Property Located at Hulick Street, Sairs Avenue 
and Avery Avenue/ Lot will be subdivided into portions to merge into 
each of the other three lots.  

 
8) Certified City of Long Branch Notice of Hearing dated 12/20/23 received 

12/28/23, re: Applicant is requesting a Certificate of Non-Conformity 
permitting current use of eight –residential families / Block 187 Lot 6/ 
279 Cleveland Ave  

 
 

 



   
 

9) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 12/20/23 received 12/28/23, re: Block 
443 Lot 1.02/ 355 A Long Branch Ave/ Applicant is seeking a D (2) 
variance, expanding a nonconforming structure and seeking bulk 
variance relief for a proposed rear single-story addition to the existing 
single-family dwelling. 

 
10 ) Copy of Certified letter from the NJDEP to the City of Long Branch, re: 

Applicant Natalio Freire, re: 9 Manahassett Park Drive/ Application for 
CAFRA General Permit 4/ Block 461 Lot 4.01 
 

11)  Certified Notice of Hearing Borough of West Long Branch, re: NOT 
LBSA 

 
12)  Certified public Notice of Hearing dated 12/21/23 received 12/28/23 

from Ashlar Place, LLC Applicant, re: 404-410 Broadway and 425 
Morris Ave / Applicant seeks to construct 94 Residential units by 
rehabilitating existing structures and building / Block 237 Lots 35.02 & 
40.01 

 
13) Certified letter dated 12/21/23 received 01/02/23 from Borough of West 

Long Branch, re: 45 Hollywood Ave/ Block 27 Lot 3/ Applicant is 
requesting verification of the absence of wetlands and wetlands transition 
areas on the property  

 
14) Certified received 01/04/24 Revised Notice of Application to the City of 

Long Branch Planning Board/ Alteration single-family residential/ Block 
134 Lots 7,8,9 & 11 

 
15) Letter dated 01/04/24 received 01/04/24 from NJDEP, re: New Jersey 

Water Bank/ Project S340336-09/ Contract Inflow/ Infiltration 
Improvement Project  

 
16) Letter dated 01/05/24 received 01/10/24 from Charles Surmonte P.E., re: 

Minor Subdivision/ Applicant Wesley DaSilva/ Lot 12 Block 242/ 30 
Grand Ave  

 
17) Letter dated 01/10/24 received 01/10/24 from Colliers Engineering & 

Design, re: Notice of Award/ Inflow & Infiltration Improvement Project 
 



   
 

18) Copy of Letter dated 01/11/24 received 01/11/24 from Colliers 
Engineering & Design to Andrew Stoeckle/ NJDEP, re: NJ 
Environmental Infrastructure Trust  

 
19) Letter dated 01/11/24 received 01/12/24 from Colliers Engineering & 

Design, re: Engineer’s Status Report for the January 2024 Meeting 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

IX. Report of Executive Director for the January 17, 2024 Authority Meeting 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by __________________ that the same, as 
prepared and submitted, is approved and ordered received and filed and made a part of 
the Minutes of this Meeting 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 

X. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 
December 20, 2023 

 
Motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken and dispositions made by Authority Counsel, of and with regard to each and all of 
the foregoing items be, and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 

XI. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 
December 20, 2023 

 
Motion by ____________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken by Authority Auditor, of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, 
and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco      Morris 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 

XII. Report by Authority Consulting Engineer of the Activities of that Office and of Actions 
taken since December 20, 2023 

 
A. Engineer’s Report on Redevelopment Projects  
B. Capital Improvement Program 
C. General Engineering 

 
See attached Engineer’s Status Report, dated January 11, 2024. 

 
 Motion by ____________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions taken 
by Authority Auditor, of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, and they 
are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified.  
  

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 



   
 

XIII. Transfers, if any 
 

 Resolution by ______________, seconded by _________________ that the List of        
Transfers, as submitted, is approved, ordered, received and filed and made a part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting.  
 

  Booth  Brown  Riley   Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 

XIV. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the January 17, 
2024 Meeting 
 
Resolution by________________________, seconded by __________________that the 
Schedule of Bills for the month of December 2023 prepared and submitted by the 
Executive Director for approval, is found regular and payment of each and all thereof, be, 
and it is, hereby, authorized to be made out of funds of Authority as the same are, or may 
become, available for such purpose. 

 
  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  

 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 
 
 
XV. Report, if any, by Investment Committee  
 

Resolution by _________________, seconded by ____________________that        
the Investments be approved and made.  
  

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XVI. Old Business 
  
 
XVII.   New Business  
 
 
XVIII. Adjournment at ____________ o'clock p.m.  
 

Motion by ____________________, seconded by ______________________ that the 
meeting be adjourned.  
 

  Booth  Brown  Riley  Larco   Morris  
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 



   
 

PARTICIPANT’S RESOLUTION  
LEAP CHALLENGE GRANT 

 
______________________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; 

seconded by ______________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the State of New Jersey has allocated $150,000 within each county for a 
statewide total of $3.15 million in Local Efficiency Achievement Program (LEAP) funds to 
promote innovation among peer local units across New Jersey, and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local Government 
Services (DLGS) administers the LEAP grant program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the LEAP Challenge Grant exists to challenge municipalities and counties 
to collaborate on more extensive partnership and collaborations to produce efficiencies through 
shared services; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority along with the County of Monmouth 
and various wastewater agencies throughout Monmouth County, have determined to apply for a 
LEAP Challenge Grant through the State of New Jersey Local Efficiency Achievement Program 
in the amount of $150,000.00; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Monmouth has agreed to be the lead agency in this program; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the State of New Jersey has made LEAP grants available to assist local 
units to study, develop and implement new shared services initiatives; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the project submitted in this grant application is intended to 
provide benefits to the participant local units’ residents through an update to the Monmouth 
County Wastewater Management Plan to study the feasibility and potential implementation of a 
Monmouth County Biosolids Resiliency project at the Monmouth County Reclamation Center; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, only funds obtained through the grant will be expended, and no financial 
contributions from the Long Branch Sewerage Authority are required. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority, that the Long Branch Sewerage Authority does hereby join with the County 
of Monmouth in applying for a LEAP challenge grant to support undertaking this endeavor. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that only funds obtained through the grant will be 

expended, and no financial contributions from the Long Branch Sewerage Authority are required 
nor appropriated.  

 



   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director 
are authorized to sign any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:  January 17, 2024 
R1.1-24 

 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
 
I, _____________________________, Secretary of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, in the 
County of Monmouth, and the State of New Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing 
Resolution is a true copy of the Original Resolution duly passed and adopted by a majority of the 
full membership of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority at its meeting of January 17, 2024. 
 
 

 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

______________________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; 
seconded by ______________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Authority”) desires to establish a “Hall of Fame” in the Meeting Room of the Authority to 
honor past and present employees, Board Members, among others; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Members of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority wish to express their 

appreciation for individuals’ years of service on behalf of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority and 
contributions to the Long Branch Sewerage Authority by honoring those individuals in a Hall of 
Fame; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to induct 

individuals into the Hall of Fame; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority that 

a “Hall of Fame” in the Meeting Room of the Authority is established. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director 

are authorized to induct individuals into the Hall of Fame. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:  January 17, 2024 
R2.1-24 

 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

WITH THE CITY OF ASBURY PARK FOR 
TECHNICAL RESCUE SERVICES FOR CONFINED SPACE ENTRY 

 
______________________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; 

seconded by ______________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Authority”) has a need for a confined space entry rescue service; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Asbury Park has a confined space entry rescue team; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act (N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 et 
seq.) promotes the broad use of shared services as a technique to reduce local expenses funded 
by property taxes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Asbury Park and the Authority are desirous of entering into an 
agreement for the providing of Technical Rescue Services for confined space entry to the 
Authority. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Long Branch Sewerage Authority herby 
authorizes the execution of an interlocal agreement with the City of Asbury Park for Technical 
Rescue Services for confined space entry, for the years 2024, 2025, and 2026, on terms and 
conditions similar to those in the attached agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director 
are authorized to sign any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:  January 17, 2024 
R3.1-24 
Exhibit A 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, _____________________________, Secretary of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, in the 
County of Monmouth, and the State of New Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing 
Resolution is a true copy of the Original Resolution duly passed and adopted by a majority of the 
full membership of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority at its meeting of January 17, 2024. 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 ___________ offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by 
_________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231, P.L. 1975, permits 
the exclusion of the public from a meeting in various circumstances, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this public body is of the opinion that such circumstances presently exist, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority as 
follows: 
 

1.  The Public shall be excluded from discussion and action upon the hereinafter 
subject matters. 

 
2.  The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is as follows: 
 
 
3.  It is anticipated at this time that the above-stated subject matters will be made 

public when the matters are resolved. 
 
4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Mrs. Morris   -  
 
Date:   
ResExSess 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 







Capacity Assurance

 Present Flow Approved Project Est. Flow Conceptual Project Est. Flow

MGD

Aqua-Vista (20 + Retail) 0.00436 145 Brighton Avenue (12 + 0.9K) 0.00279

Dec-23 4.65 Casey Jones Redevelopment 0.00876 700 Joline Avenue 0.007

Nov-23 3.70 The Westwood (53) 0.0159 83 North Broadway (12 + 1.5K) 0.002625

Sep-23 5.25 178 Chelsea Avenue School (34) 0.0102 175 Chelsea Avenue (33) 0.0099

Aug-23 4.78 Willow Ave. Redevelopment (104) 0.01670 305 Broadway (Mixed Use) 0.016

Jul-23 3.86 27, 31, 35 & 37 Third Avenue 0.00244 Synagogue Add. - 295 Park Ave. 0.00521

Jun-23 4.10 Takanassee Lake (13) 0.00390 Bluffs (109) 0.0327

May-23 3.80 665 Second Avenue (22 + Mix Use) 0.00829 215 Brighton Avenue (6) 0.0018

Apr-23 4.77 PAX Plaza (24 + retail/resturant) 0.02022 336 Branchport (40 + 4K) 0.0148

Mar-23 3.81 279 Third Avenue (154B + 11.1K) 0.01651 Neptune Avenue (62 + 18.4K) 0.02044

Feb-23 3.90 SICA Development 0.002636 201 - 215 Third Avenue (40 + 8.4K) 0.01284

Jan-23 3.76 Ocean Acre 119-129 Franklin (8) 0.00240 394 Bath Avenue 0.00120

Dec-22 3.98 180 Brighton (24 + 5.5K) 0.00595 Reformed Church of LB Housing 0.00300

total 50.36 180 Morris Avenue (28 + Office) 0.00457 156-164 Franklin Avenue (9) 0.00270

Onada Surf Club Hotel 0.00803 410 Broadway (94) 0.0282

Design 5.4 Lower Broadway (299 + 25K) 0.05850 671 Broadway 0.00066

Avg. 4.197 390-392 Ocean (132) 0.0396 333-345 Second Ave. (14) 0.0042

Approved 0.2290 Total Approved Project 0.228959 Total Conceptual Project 0.16607

Conceptual 0.1661 Approved & Conceptual 0.39503

total 4.592 95% of capacity is 5.13 Percent of 100% capacity available 15% 0.81    MGD

Percent of 95% capacity available 10% 0.54    MGD

Available 0.808306    Equivalent Units Available 2,694  @ 100% Capacity

in MGD       based on 300 gals/day/ unit

Equivalent Units Available 1,794  @ 95% Capacity

             based on 300 gals/day/ unit  

    





















































































 
101 Crawfords Corner Road  
Suite 3400  
Holmdel New Jersey 07733 
Main: 877 627 3772 
 
 
January 11, 2024 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
 
 
Thomas Roguski, P.E., CME, Executive Director 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
150 Joline Avenue 
P.O. Box 720 
Long Branch, New Jersey 07740 
 
Engineer's Status Report 
January 2024 Meeting 
Colliers Engineering & Design Project No. LBS-001 
 
Dear Mr. Roguski, 
 
The following is a report on the status of projects for which Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. (CED) 
is responsible: 
 
1. Capital Projects 

 
a. Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Study and Improvements (LBS-274) 

 
Notice to proceed was issued October 4, 2023.  The Contractor is working on cleaning and 
televising the crossings (first half of crossings have been televised and cleaned).  

 
b. Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement (LBS-275) 

 
A final Change Order has been submitted to New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (NJDEP).  Awaiting full project close out with NJDEP. 

 
c. Sludge Holding System Modifications & Final Settling Tank Improvements (LBS-281) 

 
CED is reviewing outstanding items with the Contractor.  Letter of Substantial Completion has 
been issued.  Maintenance bonds have been received. CED is finalizing as-built drawings and 
O&M manual.  

 
d. I/I Study and Improvements (LBS-284) 

 
NJDEP issued Authorization to Award on January 4, 2024.  A pre-construction meeting has been 
scheduled for January 24, 2024.  
 
 



Project No. LBS-001  
January 11, 2024 
Page 2 | 6 

e. Solar Feasibility Study (LBS-0320) 

The report was presented at the August Authority meeting.  A meeting was held with New 
Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG) and further discussions will take place.  LBSA received a response 
from NJNG, who’s still evaluating.  

 
f. Planning Document for Infrastructure Bill (LBS-001) 

 
The Letters of Intent and planning documents have been submitted to New Jersey 
Infrastructure Bank (NJIB).  NJIB acknowledged submittal.  A meeting was held with NJIB on 
August 22, 2023.  CED submitted revised Collection System Planning Report to NJIB.  The 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Planning Report was revised and has been uploaded to NJIB.  

 
g. WWTP Expansion Study (LBS-0329P)  

 
Draft proposal is being reviewed; a secondary review meeting will be scheduled.  

 
h. Hoey Pump Station Improvements (LBS-0330) 

 
A Kick-off meeting was held on December 1, 2022, and a site visit was conducted on 
December 13, 2022.  A secondary field meeting was held on April 5, 2023.  Jersey Central Power 
& Light (JCPL) is able to provide upgrade to 480V.  Change in scope was approved at the 
December meeting.  CED is working on additional scope items.  

 
i. 6th Avenue Sewer Replacement (LBS-0330P) 

 
6th Avenue sewer (along with 5th to Rockwell, and a portion of the interceptor) is going to be 
televised.  

 
j. GIS Upgrades (LBS-0002)   

 
This project is ongoing. LBSA and CED are reviewing codes. CED is setting up iPad units and 
will schedule training. 

 
2. Active Escrow Projects  
 

a. The Reef (in construction) (LBS-278) 
 

Final tests and inspection pending final construction.  Performance bond reduction was 
recommended on January 12, 2023. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
January 11, 2024 
Page 3 | 6 

 
b. Westwood Avenue (in construction) (LBS-285) 

 
One-year TWA extension was approved April 2022. A pre-construction meeting was held 
January 27, 2023.  Shop drawings have been reviewed and returned.  Construction is in 
progress. 
 

c. Takanassee (in construction) (LBS-290)  
 

Sanitary main and laterals have been installed.  Final testing to be performed.  Punchlist was 
sent to Applicant on June 7, 2021. 

 
d. Wave Spa (LBS-291) 

 
Review letter was sent to Applicant on October 24, 2022.  Revised documents were received, 
and a new review letter was issued on January 24, 2023.  TWA has been received.  
 

e. Proposed 7-Eleven (LBS-292) 
 

Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on January 7, 2021.  
 

f. Beachfront LLC (LBS-294 – 981) 
 

A pre-construction meeting was held October 13, 2023. Construction is in progress. 
 

g. Broadway Place (Phase I/II) (LBS-295) 
 

Review letter was sent to the Applicant on July 25, 2023.  Revised application is under review.  
CCTV videos are under review.  

 
h. The Belmont (in construction) (LBS-299) 

 
A pre-construction meeting was held July 6, 2022.  Shop drawings have been returned. 
Construction is ongoing. 

 
i. Pax Plaza (in construction) (LBS-305) 

 
Revised connection fees letter was provided to the  Applicant on February 22, 2022.  Shop 
drawings to date have been returned.  A pre-construction meeting was held April 26, 2023.  
 

j. Chelsea School (LBS-308) 
 

A pre-construction meeting was held on August 23, 2022.  Revised documents were approved 
on December 9, 2022. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
January 11, 2024 
Page 4 | 6 

 
k. Rt. 36 Resurfacing (LBS-309) 

 
A review letter was sent on December 23, 2020 to New Jersey Department of Traffic (NJDOT). 

 
l. Pleasure Bay Park Pool Improvements (in construction) (LBS-310) 

 
Construction is substantially complete.  Final walkthrough to be scheduled, followed by project 
closeout.  As-builts to be submitted. 

 
m. NJDOT Bridge over Troutman’s Creek (LBS-315) 

 
A meeting with NJDOT took place on Friday, June 10, 2022. 

 
n. Ocean Gate (in construction) (LBS-0316) 

 
Revised site plans were approved on July 5, 2022.  The CO was approved for Building 2.  The 
Applicant asked for performance bond reduction.  

 
o. 175 Chelsea Avenue (LBS-0317) 

 
A review letter was sent on June 8, 2021 to the Applicant.  A revised submission was made, 
and a letter was sent to the Applicant on September 9, 2021, outlining remaining items to be 
submitted. 

 
p. SICA Building (in construction) (LBS-0319) 

 
A pre-construction meeting was held April 27, 2023.  

 
q. 290 Ocean Avenue (LBS-0321) 

 
A review letter was sent on January 10, 2022 to the Applicant.  

 
r. 185 Morris Avenue (in construction) (LBS-0325) 

 
A pre-construction meeting was held July 15, 2022.  Awaiting submission of revised plans and 
shop drawings.  

 
s. 279 Third Avenue (LBS-0326) 

 
A review letter was sent to the Applicant on October 3, 2022. 

  



Project No. LBS-001  
January 11, 2024 
Page 5 | 6 

 
t. Long Branch Senior Center Improvements (in construction) (LBS-0327) 

 
Construction is in progress.  
 

u. 60 Atlantic Avenue, LLC (LBS-0333) 
 

A review letter was sent to the Applicant on August 24, 2023.  
 

v. The Atlantic Club (LBS-0334) 
 

On-site sewer TWA was submitted to DEP.  Off-site sewer improvements have been reviewed.  
 

w. Santos Subdivision (LBS-0004) 
 

A review letter was sent to the Applicant on June 30, 2023.  
 

x. 156-164 Franklin Avenue (LBS-0005) 
 

A review letter was sent to the Applicant on August 1, 2023. 
 

y. Second Avenue Multi-Use Development (LBS-0336) 
 

A Conditional Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on September 27, 2023. 
 

z. Enclave at West End (LBS-0337) 
 

A Conditional Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on September 27, 2023.  Revised plans 
have been submitted.  

 
aa. 169 Chelsea Avenue (LBS-0338) 

 
A Conditional Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on October 6, 2023.  The Applicant’s 
Engineer submitted revised plans.  Other items are still outstanding per the Conditional 
Approval letter.  
 

bb. 333-345 Second Avenue Proposed Townhouse Development (LBS-0339) 
 

A Conditional Approval letter was sent to the Applicant on December 22, 2023.  
 

cc. Ocean Acre (LBS-0340) 
 

A Conditional Approval letter sent to the Applicant on December 22, 2023.  
  



Project No. LBS-001  
January 11, 2024 
Page 6 | 6 

Should you have any questions or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact me directly. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. 
(DBA Maser Consulting) 
 
 
 
 
Jordan R. Volk, P.E., PMP 
Regional Manager 
 
JRV/lsl/mag 
 
r:\projects\i-l\lbs\lbs001\reports\monthly status updates\2024\240111_jrv_roguski_january meeting.docx 

 



 

 
 
 1 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 
 
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
 
 DECEMBER 20, 2023 
 
 
I. and II. Opening and Attendance of Meeting and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 A Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority was called to order at 3:00 
p.m., prevailing time, on Wednesday, December 20, 2023, by the Executive Director, Thomas 
Roguski, both in person and electronically via telephonic communication conference call, attended 
by Mr. Booth, Mr. Brown, and Mr. Riley.  Mr. Larco and Mrs. Morris were absent.  
 
 In addition to the Members of the Authority hereinabove stated, there were present at said 
Regular Meeting the following professional attaches: Thomas Roguski, P.E., Executive Director; 
John L. Bonello, Esq., of the firm Manna & Bonello, P.A., Authority Counsel; Lauren Lechner and 
Jordan Volk P.E., of the firm Colliers Engineering and Design, Authority Engineer; Charles J. 
Fallon, CPA, RMA, of the firm Fallon & Company LLP, Authority Auditor; and Nicole Woods, 
Secretary. 
 
 
III. Announcement Pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meeting Act. 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2023, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 23, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 19, 
2023 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 15, 2023, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 

 
 
IV. Public Participation. 
 
 Mr. Vincent Lepore from 33 Ocean Terrace was present via telephonic communication.  
 
 Mr. Lepore questioned Mr. Bonello about Correspondence Item No. 21, which is a letter 
from Mr. Roguski regarding sewer availability for Block 268 Lots 1-7, 32 and 33. Mr. Lepore asked 
if the Authority is obligated to provide such information to someone who does not own the 
property. Mr. Bonello replied that this is a matter of public record and a critical piece of information 
for the developer to facilitate the development.  
 



 

 
 
 2 

 Mr. Lepore asked Mr. Fallon for clarification of several comments from the Audit report. 
Mr. Fallon addressed all of Mr. Lepore’s questions and concerns satisfactorily. Mr. Roguski 
thanked Mr. Lepore for his comments and insight. 
 
 Mr. Lepore had no further questions and thanked the Board. 
  
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain; the Public Participation portion of the Meeting 
was closed. 
 
 
V. Miscellaneous Suggestions for the Good of the Authority 
 
 Mr. Lepore suggested that the Commissioners photos and contact information be added to 
the Long Branch Sewerage Authority website.  
 
 Mr. Lepore stated that his past suggestion of naming the Authority Administration Building 
for past Executive Director, Joseph Martone, would be for dedication purposes only and was not 
intended to disrupt the operational name of the Authority buildings.  
 
 Mr. Lepore had no further comments and thanked the Board.  
 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain; the Miscellaneous Suggestion for the Good of 
The Authority portion of the Meeting was closed. 
 
 
VI. As to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 8, 2023  
 
 On Motion by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, the reading of the Minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on November 8, 2023, to be dispensed with 
and that such Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 
 
VII. As to the Minutes of the Executive Session held on March 15, 2023, if any  
 
 None 
  
 
VIII. Correspondence 
 
 The attached list of correspondence was reviewed by the Authority.  Individual items were 
dealt with as follows: 
 



 

 
 
 3 

 Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item No. 12 is a letter from Colliers Engineering 
& Design regarding the WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 
Improvements, Partial Payment Request No. 11 from Thomas Controls, Inc. in the amount of 
$45,712.78. 
 
 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 
Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
  
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has 
received Partial Payment Request No. 11 from Thomas Controls, 
Inc. for the Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 
Improvements Project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this request for payment is in the amount of 
$45,712.78, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has recommended approval of this request, per their 
letter dated November 27, 2023, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that it approves payment of Partial 
Payment Request No. 11 to Thomas Controls, Inc. in the amount of 
$45,712.78, and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - ABSENT  
Mrs. Morris   - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R1.12-23 
Exhibit A 

**** 
  



 

 
 
 4 

 Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item No. 26 is a proposal received from 
Colliers Engineering and Design in the amount of $45,800.00 for the Hoey Pump Station 
Improvements Project. Mr. Roguski explained that during the design of the Pump Station 
Improvements a few unknown conditions came to light. One of which was a major storm event 
two months ago which brought eight inches of rain that caused flooding within a few feet of the 
Pump Station. Mr. Roguski recognized the need to raise the pump station controls and facilities 
that may be affected by a higher flood. Mr. Roguski further explained that the Hoey Pump 
Station handles approximately one quarter of the flow to the plant and to lose that station to a 
flood would be disastrous. Mr. Roguski requested Colliers Engineering and Design to revise the 
plans to include elevating everything.   
 
 Mr. Riley inquired as to the value of the Hoey Pump Station.  
 
 Mr. Roguski replied that the value is well over a million dollars and if the pumps were 
ever to fail, we would not be able to service the Elberon section of town and could face NJDEP 
fines.  
 

 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
  
Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has previously received proposals from its Qualified 
Consulting Engineers on September 28, 2022, for Professional 
Engineering Services for the design, permitting, bidding, 
construction administration and observation services for the Hoey 
Pump Station Improvements Project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority previously awarded the 
Professional Engineering Services to Colliers Engineering & Design, 
per their proposal, dated September 28, 2022, for the design, 
permitting, bidding, construction administration and observation 
services for the Hoey Pump Station Improvements Project, and  
 

WHEREAS, during design, it has become necessary to 
modify the proposed scope of work to account for unknown 
conditions and to mitigate against flood risk, and  

 
WHEREAS, Colliers Engineering & Design submitted a 

proposal, dated October 16, 2023, revised December 13, 2023, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, for the additional design, 
permitting, bidding, construction administration and observation 
services for the Hoey Pump Station Improvements Project, and 



 

 
 
 5 

 WHEREAS, the proposal charge is an additional $45,800.00 
for additional design, permitting, bidding, construction 
administration and observation services, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority’s Engineering Committee has 
reviewed the attached proposal and has recommended approval of 
same, and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purpose, as per the certification 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards 
Colliers Engineering & Design the proposal to provide additional 
design, permitting, bidding, construction administration and 
observation services for the Hoey Pump Station Improvements 
Project, in the total additional amount of $45,800.00 subject to 
Colliers Engineering & Design complying with all of the 
requirements of the terms and conditions of the proposal. 
 

 2.  The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with 
Colliers Engineering & Design for the purpose expressed 
hereinabove. 
 

 3.  Colliers Engineering & Design’s authorized proposal, 
dated September 28, 2022, remains in effect, with the exception of 
any modifications made with the attached proposal, dated October 
16, 2023, revised December 13, 2023. 
 

 4.   The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
  
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE  
Mr. Larco - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R2.12-23 
Exhibits B & C 

**** 
 



 

 
 
 6 

 Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item No. 32 is a letter from Colliers 
Engineering and Design recommending the conditional approval of 333-345 Second Avenue 
proposed townhouse development. Mr. Roguski explained that these proposed fourteen (14) 
townhomes will be located at the former Seashore Day Camp site and will connect to the Second 
Avenue main.  
 
 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 

 
 WHEREAS, Bathhaus, LLC has applied for sewer 
connection for 333-345 Second Avenue known as Block 212, Lots 
4, 5 and 11, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application was accompanied by the 
necessary documentation, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has reviewed the associated documents, and has 
recommended that the application be conditionally approved in their 
letter, dated December 14, 2023, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, and  
 
 WHEREAS, there is adequate capacity to service the 
request.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the application of Bathhaus, LLC 
for connection to the sewerage system be and the same is hereby 
approved conditionally as per the letter of the Authority Engineer, 
Colliers Engineering & Design, dated December 14, 2023, and upon 
the payment of all requisite fees, including, but not limited to, 50% 
of the total connection fee due prior to issuance of the City of Long 
Branch Building Permit, and the remaining 50% due prior to 
issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 7 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown     - AYE 
Mr. Larco - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R3.12-23 
Exhibit D 

**** 
 
 Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item No. 33 is a letter from Colliers 
Engineering and Design, recommending the award of the 2018 Capital Improvements Projects – 
Collection Systems Inflow and Infiltration Improvements Project to A to Z Site Contractors, Inc. 
in the amount of $1,149,225.20. Mr. Roguski further explained that the lowest bidder, A to Z 
Site Contractors, bid two (2) line items below the minimum amount bid.  This was reviewed by 
all parties involved including Mr. Bonello. Mr. Bonello provided a letter stating that this was a 
mistake and recommended allowing A to Z Site Contractors to correct this mistake, which is 
included as an exhibit to the following resolution. Mr. Roguski further explained that correcting 
this mistake will account for an additional $3,500.00 or so to the bid, which is still substantially 
less than the other bids received. Mr. Roguski stated that the award of this contract is contingent 
upon the NJDEP and the I-Bank approvals and release of funds. 
 

 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has heretofore advertised for receipt of bids for the 
Inflow/Infiltration Improvements Project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response thereto the Authority has received 
bids from the parties and bid amounts as specified on the Bid Tally 
List as prepared by and provided by the Authority Engineer, 
Colliers Engineering & Design, in their letter dated December 15, 
2023, both attached hereon and both made a part hereof, and 
 

WHEREAS, the low bidders, A to Z Site Contractors, 
Inc.’s bid contained an error which has been addressed per A to Z 
Site Contractors, Inc. letter dated December 6, 2023, and per the 
Authority Attorney, Manna & Bonello’s letter dated December 4, 



 

 
 
 8 

2023, both attached hereon and both made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has recommended the award of this contract to A to Z 
Site Contractors, Inc., 500 Houston Avenue #1, Jackson, NJ 
08527, in the amount of $1,149,225.20 for the Total Base Bid plus 
Alternate Bid, and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with law, the Authority is 
required to award the contract for the Inflow/Infiltration 
Improvements Project to the lowest responsible bidder, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purpose through the New 
Jersey Infrastructure Bank (hereinafter “NJIB”) under Loan Number 
S340336-09, as per the certification attached hereto and made a 
part hereof, conditional upon the New Jersey Department of 
Environmental Protection’s (hereinafter “NJDEP”) and New Jersey 
Infrastructure Bank’s (hereinafter “NJIB”) approval and 
authorization to award the contract, and 
 
 WHEREAS, award of this contract to A to Z Site 
Contractors, Inc. is conditional upon the New Jersey Department of 
Environmental Protection’s (hereinafter “NJDEP”) and New Jersey 
Infrastructure Bank’s (hereinafter “NJIB”) approval and 
authorization to award the contract. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby awards its contract 
for the Inflow/Infiltration Improvements Project to A to Z Site 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $1,149,225.20 for the Total 
Base Bid plus Alternate Bid, subject to A to Z Site Contractors, 
Inc. complying with all of the requirements of the terms and 
conditions of the Bid Plans and Specifications prepared in 
connection with this contract and included in Notice to Bidders, 
and conditional upon the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection’s (hereinafter “NJDEP”) and New Jersey Infrastructure 
Bank’s (hereinafter “NJIB”)  approval and authorization to award 
the contract, and 
 

2. The Authority is authorized to enter into a contract with A to Z 
Site Contractors, Inc. for the purpose-expressed hereinabove, 
conditional upon the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection’s (hereinafter “NJDEP”) and New Jersey Infrastructure 
Bank’s (hereinafter “NJIB”) approval and authorization to award the 



 

 
 
 9 

contract, and 
 

3. The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized 
to sign any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris   - ABSENT 
 
Date:  December 20, 2023 
R4.12-23 
Exhibits E, F, G, H, I 

**** 
 
 Mr. Roguski reported that Correspondence Item No. 34 is a letter received from Colliers 
Engineering and Design recommending the conditional approval of the Ocean Acres Project at 
119-129 Franklin Avenue for eight (8) townhouse units.  
 
 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 

 
 WHEREAS, Ocean Acre has applied for sewer connection 
for 119-129 Franklin Avenue known as Block 217, Lots 26 and 27, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application was accompanied by the 
necessary documentation, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has reviewed the associated documents, and has 
recommended that the application be conditionally approved in their 
letter, dated December 15, 2023, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, and  
 
 WHEREAS, there is adequate capacity to service the 
request.  
 
 



 

 
 
 10 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the application of Ocean Acre for 
connection to the sewerage system be and the same is hereby 
approved conditionally as per the letter of the Authority Engineer, 
Colliers Engineering & Design, dated December 15, 2023, and upon 
the payment of all requisite fees, including, but not limited to, 50% 
of the total connection fee due prior to issuance of the City of Long 
Branch Building Permit, and the remaining 50% due prior to 
issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE  
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown     - AYE 
Mr. Larco - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R5.12-23 
Exhibit J 

**** 
 
Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report. 
 

LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

DECEMBER 20, 2023 

1) Letter dated 11/07/23 received 11/13/23 from Charles Surmonte, P.E. & L.S., re: Block 
100 Lot 38, 650 Woodgate Ave, Serviceability Request 
 

2) Letter dated 11/15/23 and received 11/15/23 via email from Colliers Engineering & 
Design to Freehold Soil Conservation District, re: Plan Certification for I & I 
improvements for LBSA. Project No.LBS-284. 
 

3) Certified Notice of Hearing received 11/14/23 from Long Branch Planning Board, 
re:119-129 Franklin Ave/ Block 217 Lots 26/27, variance relief. 
 



 

 
 
 11 

4) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 11/13/23 received 11/16/23 from City of Long Branch 
Zoning Board of Adjustment, re: 298 Branchport Ave. Block 356 / Lot 1. Applicant, 
Block Kraft Properties, LLC seeks Certificate of Nonconformity. 
 

5) Certified Letter dated 11/14/23 received 11/17/23 from Galway Builders, LLC, re: 
Branchport Crossing, Block 357 Lots 2, 3, 4, & 5, Application for CAFRA Individual 
Permit. 
 

6) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 11/7/23 received 11/17/23 from Gemstone 
Apartments, LLC, re: Block 280 Lot 11.03 (formally Block 280 Lots11.02, 12, 13, and 
14) 27, 31, 35 and 37 Third Avenue, Applicant proposes to replace the previously 
approved 6-foot decorative wall with a 6-foot fence. 
 

7) Certified Letter dated 11/8/23 received 11/17/23 from State of New Jersey, DEP, re: 
Compliance Evaluation and Inspection, Long Branch Sewerage Authority. 
 

8) Letter dated 11/21/23 via email from LBSA to Charles Surmonte, PE, LS re: Letter of 
Service Availability: Sanitary Sewer Block 100, Lot 38, 650 Woodgate Ave. 
 

9) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 11/9/23 received 11/20/2023 from Temple Beth 
Miriam, re: Block 4 Lot 3, Applicant is seeking d2 conditional use variance approval, as 
well as minor site plan/subdivision approval, to subdivide the existing lot into two (2) 
conforming lots. 
 

10) Certified Notice of Public Hearing received 11/20/2023 from Long Branch Zoning Board 
of Adjustments, re: 907 Ocean Ave/Block 59 Lot 3, variance relief. 
 

11) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 11/14/2023 received 11/20/23 from Long Branch 
Planning Board, re: 239 Liberty Street /Block 397 Lots 11 and 15. Applicant, Gino 
Realty, LLC seeks minor subdivision approval to adjust the lot lines of two existing lots. 
 

12) Letter dated 11/27/23 received 11/29/23 from Colliers Engineering, re: WWTP Sludge 
Handling System and Emergency Pump Station Improvement, Partial Payment Request 
No. 11 
 

13) Certified Notice of Hearing received 11/30/23 from Daniel J. O’Hern, Jr, Esq., re: 14 
Ocean Ave / Block 51 Lot 11, 1 Riverdale Ave / Block 52 Lot 16 and Block 52 Lot 17 in 
Monmouth Beach (NOT LBSA) 
 

14) Copy of a Letter and Email dated 11/30/23 received 11/30/23 from Thomas Roguski to 
Joanna Pagliano, PE, Stonefield Engineering and Design, re: Request for Service 
Availability: Sanitary Sewer for Proposed Mixed-Use Development, 83 North Broadway 
/ Block 305 Lot 9 
 

15) Certified Public Notice received 12/5/23 from Inglesino Taylor, re: 11 Sherman Ave / 
Block 103 Lots 14, 15 & 16, West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 



 

 
 
 12 

 
16) Certified Public Notice dated 11/16/23 received 12/5/23 from Salvatore Alfieri, Esq., re: 

277 Route 36 / Block 68 Lots 3 & 5, West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 
 

17) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 11/29/23 received 12/5/23 from Rick Brodsky, Esq., re: 
16 & 20 Whalepond Road / Block 4002 Lot 22.01, Eatontown (NOT LBSA) 
 

18) Letter dated 12/4/23 received 12/5/23 from John L. Bonello, re: Inflow/Infiltration 
Project LBS-284 
 

19) Letter dated 12/6/23 received 12/6/23 from A to Z Site Contractors, re: LBSA 
Inflow/Infiltration Improvements Project #S340336-09 / LBS-284 
 

20) Affidavit of Publication dated 10/20/23 received 12/6/23 from The Link News, re: Notice 
to Bidders for the Inflow / Infiltration Improvement Project. 
 

21) Copy of a Letter dated 12/8/23 received 12/8/23 from Thomas Roguski to Andrew 
Pentaleri, Dynamic Engineering, re: Request for service availability, Proposed Mixed-
Use Development, 305-319 Broadway, 11-15 Lippincott Ave, 14-28 Sixth Ave. / Block 
268 Lots 1-7, 32 & 33. 
 

22) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 12/6/23 received 12/8/23 from Robert L. Witek, 
II Esq., re: 201, 213 & 215 Third Ave. / Block 228 Lots 1, 42 & 43.01, Applicant seeks to 
merger the three lots in to one parcel and demolish all existing structures and construct a 
single muti-use structure. 
 

23) Certified Legal Notice received 12/8/23 from RMH Select Properties, LLC, re: 10 
Throckmorton Ave / Block 73 Lots 28, 29, 30 & 31, West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 
 

24) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 12/5/23 received 12/8/23 from Jason King & Caitlyn 
Liptak King, re: 355 A Long Branch Ave / Block 443 Lot 1.02, Application for a 
Certificate of Nonconformity 
 

25) Copy of an email from Thomas Roguski to Kevin J. Hayes, Sr., re: Letter of Service 
Availability for 9 Manahassett Park Dr. / Block 461 Lot 4.01 
 

26) Letter dated 10/16/23 Revised 12/13/23 received 12/14/23 from Colliers Engineering and 
Design, re: Additional Services – Design and Construction Phase Services, Hoey Avenue 
Pump Station Improvements 
 

27) Certified Notice of Hearing received 12/14/23 from Kristopher Fonselius, re: 500 
Neptune Ave / Block 473 Lot 17. Applicant seeks post construction approval for the 
expansion of the driveway.  
 

28) Letter dated 12/4/23 received 12/14/23 from John Bonello, re: Inflow/Infiltration 
Improvements Project LBS-284. 



 

 
 
 13 

 
29) Certified Letter dated December 2023 received 12/14/23 from New Jersey Utility 

Authorities Joint Insurance Fund, re: 2024 Assessments. 
 

30) Certified Letter dated 10/2/23 from Municipal Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund, re: 
Local Government Insurance Issues 
 

31) Letter dated 12/11/23 received 12/14/23 from Freehold Soil Conservation District, re: 
Sanitary Sewer Infiltration and Inflow Improvements.  
 

32) Letter dated 12/14/23 received 12/14/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 333-
345 Second Ave Proposed Townhouse Development, Bathhaus, LLC, 333-345 Second 
Ave. / Block 212 Lots 4, 5, & 11, LBS-0339 
 

33) Letter dated 12/15/23 received 12/15/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 
Recommendation of Award 2018 Capital Improvements Projects – Collection System 
Inflow/Infiltration Improvements 
 

34) Letter dated 12/15/23 received 12/15/23 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Ocean 
Acre, 119-129 Franklin Avenue / Block 217 Lots 26 & 27 

 
35) Letter dated 12/15/23 received 12/15/23 from Colliers Engineering and Design, re: 

Engineer’s Status Report for December 2023 Meeting 
 

36) Letter dated 12/6/23 received 12/6/23 from A to Z Site Contractors, Inc., re: 
Inflow/Infiltration Improvements Project LBS-284. 
 

 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, the attached List of Correspondence was 
ordered received and filed. 
 
 
IX. Report of the Executive Director for the December 20, 2023 Authority Meeting  
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that over the last month the Authority treated an average of 3.70 
MGD and all limits of the discharge permit were met.  
 
 Mr. Roguski reported that the Contract Negotiations with both the Plant and Office 
unions have been completed for the three-year term 2024 to 2026 resulting in a four percent (4%) 
increase under both contracts, among other negotiated items as outlined in resolution exhibits.  
 
 The following two resolutions were presented.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 14 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth 

 
            WHEREAS, LOCAL 32, the Office and Professional 
Employees International Union (“OPEIU”) is the exclusive majority 
representative of a unit of white-collar workers employed by the 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the "Authority"), pursuant to the 
New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1 
et seq. (the "Act"), and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and OPEIU are signatories to a 
collective negotiations agreement that expires on December 31, 
2023, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Act requires that the Authority and OPEIU 
negotiate in good faith over the terms and conditions of employment 
for the employees in OPEIU negotiating unit, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the negotiating teams of the Authority and 
OPEIU have negotiated in good faith pursuant to their obligations 
under the Act and have reached a tentative agreement as to all terms 
and conditions of employment for such employees, for inclusion in a 
successor collective negotiations agreement for the period of January 
1, 2024 - December 31, 2026, and have agreed upon the form of such 
successor agreement as outlined in the attached Outline of 
Agreement a copy of which is attached hereto, subject to ratification 
by their principals and the Authority, and 
 
 WHEREAS, OPEIU has informed the Authority that the 
Proposed Agreement will be submitted to its membership for 
ratification following ratification by the Authority, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority believe that entering into the Proposed 
Agreement would be in the best interest of the Authority and the 
public, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the 
Commissioners of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, that the 
Proposed Agreement between the Authority and OPEIU for the 
period January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2026, is hereby ratified and 
approved, and 
 
 



 

 
 
 15 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director 
is hereby directed to take such actions as are necessary to effectuate 
the terms of the aforesaid Agreement. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Executive Director and/or Chairman are hereby authorized to sign 
any documents necessary to effectuate this Resolution and the 
aforesaid Agreement. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R6.12-23 
Exhibit K 

**** 



 

 
 
 16 

RESOLUTION 
 
  Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 

 
            WHEREAS, LOCAL 4-406, the United Steel, Paper and 
Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial, and 
Service Workers International Union (“USW”) is the exclusive 
majority representative of a unit of blue-collar workers employed by 
the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the "Authority"), pursuant to 
the New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act, N.J.S.A. 
34:13A-1 et seq. (the "Act"), and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and USW are signatories to a 
collective negotiations agreement that expired on December 31, 
2023, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Act requires that the Authority and USW 
negotiate in good faith over the terms and conditions of employment 
for the employees in USW negotiating unit, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the negotiating teams of the Authority and 
USW have negotiated in good faith pursuant to their obligations 
under the Act and have reached a tentative agreement as to all terms 
and conditions of employment for such employees, for inclusion in a 
successor collective negotiations agreement for the period of January 
1, 2024- December 31, 2026, and have agreed upon the form of such 
successor agreement as outlined in the Memorandum of Agreement a 
copy of which is attached hereto, subject to ratification by their 
principals and the Authority, and 
 
 WHEREAS, USW has informed the Authority that the 
Proposed Agreement has been ratified by its membership, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority believe that entering into the Proposed 
Agreement would be in the best interest of the Authority and the 
public, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the 
Commissioners of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, that the 
Proposed Agreement between the Authority and USW for the period 
January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2026, is hereby ratified and 
approved, and 
 
 



 

 
 
 17 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director 
is hereby directed to take such actions as are necessary to effectuate 
the terms of the aforesaid Agreement. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Executive Director and/or Chairman are hereby authorized to sign 
any documents necessary to effectuate this Resolution and the 
aforesaid Agreement. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date:  December 20, 2023 
R7.12-23 
Exhibit L 

 
**** 

 
 Mr. Roguski reported that Mr. Melvin Morris provided the Authority with great service 
during the past year with the covering of several employee leaves of absence by not taking any 
vacation time himself. Mr. Roguski further explained that it would be advantageous for the 
Authority to buy back Mr. Morris’ unused vacation time down to one (1) years’ worth of time. 
 

 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") desires to buy back Mr. Melvin Morris’ vacation time 
down to one (1) years’ worth of vacation time accrual, on a one-
time basis, and 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Morris elected to work and not request 
vacation during various times of labor shortages during 2023 due 
to various reasons, and 
 

WHEREAS, this vacation buy back is offered to Mr. 
Morris on a voluntary basis and is not mandatory, and 



 

 
 
 18 

 WHEREAS, Mr. Morris has indicated that back buy of the 
vacation time is his preferred course of action; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority shall compensate Mr. Morris 
for any accrued vacation time over one (1) years’ worth of 
vacation time accrual as of December 31, 2023 at Mr. Morris’ 
current 2023 hourly rate of compensation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director has indicated that 
there are funds available from the 2023 Budget for this buy back, 
and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority (the "Authority") that the Authority is 
authorized to buy back Mr. Melvin Morris’ vacation time down to 
one (1) years’ worth of vacation time accrual, on a one-time basis. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority shall 
compensate Mr. Morris for any accrued vacation time over one (1) 
years’ worth of vacation time accrual as of December 31, 2023 at 
Mr. Morris’ current 2023 hourly rate of compensation. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this vacation buy 

back is offered to Mr. Morris on a voluntary basis and is not 
mandatory, and Mr. Morris has indicated that buy back of the 
vacation time is his preferred course of action. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Executive Director and/or Chairman are hereby authorized to sign 
any documents necessary to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date:  December 20, 2023 
R8.12-23 

**** 
 

Mr. Roguski stated that the Authority has identified a need for a Utility Crew Position 
and seeks to hire an entry level position to be able to grow into other positions. Mr. Roguski 
explained that last month Mr. Riley suggested hiring someone new and young, and this hire fits 



 

 
 
 19 

that bill.  The potential hire is local and young with good mechanical aptitude and willingness to 
learn. The Authority’s Human Resource Committee recommended the hiring of Tyler Munson at 
the starting rate of $18.01 per hour.  

 
 The Following resolution was presented. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage 
Authority that it hereby ratifies and approves the hiring of Tyler 
Munson as Utility Crew effective January 2, 2024, or at a starting 
date thereafter as determined by the Executive Director, at a rate of 
compensation of $18.01 per hour.  This resolution and employment 
are conditional upon Tyler Munson successfully completing a pre-
employment physical test, drug test, alcohol test, and background 
check, all to the sole satisfaction of the Long Branch Sewerage 
Authority.  This resolution and employment will become void should 
Tyler Munson not successfully complete a pre-employment physical 
test, drug test, alcohol test, and background check, all to the sole 
satisfaction of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority.   
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R9.12-23 

**** 
 
Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report.  

 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, the report of the Executive Director, as 
prepared and submitted, is hereby approved, and ordered received and filed and made part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting. 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 20 

X. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions 
 taken since November 8, 2023 
 
 Mr. Bonello reported that he recommended the correction of the bid from A to Z Site 
Contractors as the law allows the correction of miniscule mistakes like this.  
 
 Mr. Bonello had nothing further to report.  
 

On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
the Authority Counsel of and regarding each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in all 
respects approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XI. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken 
 since November 8, 2023 
 
 Mr. Fallon reviewed several key points in the Audit for the Commissioners.  Mr. Roguski 
asked Mr. Fallon if the absent Commissioners may reach out with any questions that they may 
have after reviewing the Audit. Mr. Fallon replied affirmatively. 
 
 Mr. Fallon had nothing further to report.  
 
 Mr. Roguski thanked Mr. Fallon and the following resolutions were presented. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth 
 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-15 requires the governing body of each local authority to cause an 
annual audit of its accounts to be made, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual audit report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, has been 
completed and filed with the Long Branch Sewerage Authority pursuant to N.J.S.A 40A:5A-15, and 
 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-17 requires the governing body of each authority to, within 45 days 
of receipt of the annual audit, certify by resolution to the Local Finance Board that each member thereof has 
personally reviewed the annual audit report, and specifically the sections of the audit report entitled 
"Schedule of Findings and Recommendations", and has evidenced same by group affidavit in the form 
prescribed by the Local Finance Board, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the members of the governing body have received the annual audit and have personally 
reviewed the annual audit, and have specifically reviewed the sections of the annual audit report entitled 
"Schedule of Findings and Recommendations " in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-17, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage 
Authority hereby certifies to the Local Finance Board of the State of New Jersey that each governing body 
member has personally reviewed the annual audit report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, and 



 

 
 
 21 

specifically has reviewed the sections of the audit report entitled "General Comments" and 
"Recommendations", and has evidenced same by group affidavit in the form prescribed by the Local Finance 
Board. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of the Authority is hereby directed to promptly 
submit to the Local Finance Board the aforesaid group affidavit, accompanied by a certified true copy of this 
resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date:  December 20, 2023 
R10.12-23 

                                 IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS IS 
                                 A TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED 

                               AT THE MEETING OF THE LONG BRANCH 
                                               SEWERAGE AUTHORITY HELD ON  

DECEMBER 20, 2023 
 

_____________________________________ 
  

       David G. Brown, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 22 

LOCAL AUTHORITIES GROUP AFFIDAVIT 
 

PRESCRIBED BY THE NEW JERSEY LOCAL FINANCE BOARD 
 

AUDIT REVIEW CERTIFICATE 
 
  
 We, the members of the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, being of 
full age and being duly sworn according to law, upon our oath depose and say: 
 
 1.  We are duly appointed members of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority. 
 
 2.  We certify, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-17, that we each reviewed the annual audit 
report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, and specifically the sections of the audit report 
entitled “Schedule of Findings and Recommendations”. 
 
 
 
 
Print Name                                  Signature 
 
 
Donald S. Riley          ____________________________________ 
 
Michael Booth            ____________________________________ 
 
David G. Brown         ____________________________________ 
 
Bryan I. Larco            ____________________________________ 
 
Susie Morris            ____________________________________ 
 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me 
This ______ day of __________, 2023. 
 
______________________________ 
 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R11.12-2023 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 23 

RESOLUTION 
 
 Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-15 requires the governing 
body of each local authority to cause an annual audit of its accounts 
to be made, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the annual audit report for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022 has been completed and filed with the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-15, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-16 the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
authorizes the publishing in a newspaper of a synopsis of the annual 
audit. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date:  December 20, 2023 
R12.12-23 

**** 
  
  
 Mr. Roguski reported that the following resolution is for 2023 budget transfers to balance 
the line items of the budget outlined in the attached spreadsheet exhibit.   
 

The following resolution was presented.  
 

 RESOLUTION 
 
 Mr. Brown offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption; seconded by Mr. Booth 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") anticipates exceeding certain Budget Line Items in its 
2023 Budget, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Comptroller has recommended 



 

 
 
 24 

an adjustment be made to these Budget Line Items in the form of a 
Budget Transfer Resolution, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director has prepared 
documentation outlining these Budget Line Items for transfer, 
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director has certified that there 
are funds available from other Budget Line Items for these budget 
adjustments, and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that it hereby approves the Budget 
Transfer as submitted by the Executive Director and made a part 
hereto, and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Executive Director and/or Chairman are hereby authorized to sign 
any documents necessary to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth - AYE 
Mr. Brown  - AYE 
Mr. Larco  - ABSENT 
Mrs. Morris  - ABSENT 
 
Date: December 20, 2023 
R13.12-23 
Exhibit M 

**** 
 

 Mr. Roguski reported that the 2024 Budget, which was introduced in October, was approved 
by the State with some minor comments that were satisfactorily addressed.  
 
 The following resolution for the Adoption of the 2024 Budget was presented.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 25 

2024 ADOPTED BUDGET RESOLUTION 

 
LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 

AUTHORITY 
 

FISCAL 
YEAR: 

FROM: 
January 
1, 2024 

 
TO: 

December 
31, 2024 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Annual Budget and Capital Budget/Program for the Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the fiscal 
year beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024 has been presented for adoption before the governing 
body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority at its open public meeting of December 20, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Annual Budget and Capital Budget as presented for adoption reflects each item of revenue and 
appropriation in the same amount and title as set forth in the introduced and approved budget, including all amendments 
thereto, if any, which have been approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Annual Budget as presented for adoption reflects Total Revenues of $8,133,896.00 Total 
Appropriations, including any Accumulated Deficit, if any, of $8,403,896.00 and Total Unrestricted Net Position utilized 
of $270,000.00 and 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Budget as presented for adoption reflects Total Capital Appropriations of $7,159,500.00 and 
Total Unrestricted Net Position planned to be utilized as funding thereof, of $0.00; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the governing body of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, at an 
open public meeting held on December 20, 2023 that the Annual Budget and Capital Budget/Program of the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority for the fiscal year beginning, January 1, 2024 and, ending December 31, 2024 is hereby 
adopted and shall constitute appropriations for the purposes stated, and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Annual Budget and Capital Budget/Program as presented for adoption 
reflects each item of revenue and appropriation in the same amount and title as set forth in the introduced and approved 
budget, including all amendments thereto, if any, which have been approved by the Director of the Division of Local 
Government Services. 
 
 
_________________________________________  December 20, 2023 
(Secretary’s Signature)    
 
Governing Body   Recorded Vote 
    Member:                                 Aye                   Nay               Abstain          Absent 
    Mr. Riley            Mr. Larco 
    Mr. Brown            Mrs. Morris     
    Mr. Booth 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 26 

 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
Authority Auditor of and about each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in all respects, 
approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XII.  Report by Authority Consulting Engineer of the Activities of that Office and of 
Actions taken Since November 8, 2023 
 
 Ms. Lauren Lechner reported on the status of the Capital Improvements Projects. 
 
 Regarding the Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Study, the contractor was out last week 
working on the cleaning and televising of the crossings.  
 
 The Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement is awaiting the final close-out NJDEP. 
  
 Regarding the Sludge Holding Systems Modifications & Final Settling Tank 
Improvements, Colliers is reviewing outstanding items with the contractor prior to closing out 
the project.  
 
 The I/I Study and Improvements contract was awarded earlier in the meeting, contingent 
on the NJDEP approval.  
 
 There is no update regarding the Solar Feasibility Study. 
 
 There are no updates on the Planning Documents for the Infrastructure Bill.  
 
 Regarding the WWTP Expansion Study, a draft proposal was prepared and a review 
meeting will be scheduled.  
 
 Regarding the Hoey Pump Station Improvements, as reported earlier, Colliers provided a 
change of scope for the elevated structures at the Hoey Pump Station. Now that it has been 
approved, the work will begin.  
 
 Regarding the Sixth Avenue Sewer Replacement, the Authority will be televising some 
of the pipes on Sixth Avenue. 
 
 The GIS Upgrade is currently underway. Colliers will be setting up mobile units for 
mapping software.  
 
 Ms. Lechner had nothing further to report. 
 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
Authority Consulting Engineer of and about each and all the foregoing items be, and they are in 
all respects, approved, confirmed, and ratified. 



 

 
 
 27 

XIII. Transfers, if any. 
 

The transfers are as listed. 
 

 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed 
by all affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, approving the 
Authority Transfers for the month of November 2023 as listed. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 20TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2023 
PURSUANT TO NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM 
IS PRESENT THAT THE AUTHORITY HEREBY APPROVES 
THE TRANSFERS MADE FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 
2023 AS SUBMITTED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
ORDERS SAID REPORT RECEIVED AND FILED. 

 
 
XIV. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the 
 Month of November 2023 
 
 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed 
by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain.  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 20th DAY OF DECEMBER 2023 
PURSUANT TO NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM 
IS PRESENT, the List of Bills for the month of November 2023 
are found regular and payment of each and all, thereof is 
authorized to be paid out of the Revolving Fund, General Funds, 
Revenue Fund or Collection Account as indicated on the said List 
of Bills attached to the Executive Director’s Report. 
 

 
XV. Report, if any, by Investment Committee. 

 
 No report of the investment committee.  

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 28 

XVI. Old Business. 
 

 Mr. Roguski opened the floor to discuss the placing of a plaque in the meeting room to 
honor Mr. Joseph Martone for his years of service to the Authority.  
 
 Mr. Booth, Mr. Brown, and Mr. Riley agreed to the purchase of said plaque. Mr. Roguski 
stated that since the price of a plaque is below the bid threshold, he will proceed with the 
purchase. Mr. Roguski will present a resolution next month formalizing same.  
 
     
XVII. New Business 
  
 Mr. Brown asked if there is any new information regarding 390-392 Ocean Avenue and 
the development of lower Broadway.  
 
 Mr. Roguski replied regarding 390-392 Ocean Avenue, the project is fully approved from 
a sewer standpoint and has received NJDEP TWA permits for the on-site and off-site portions of 
the work.  
 
 Mr. Roguski also reported that regarding the lower Broadway development, the NJDEP 
TWA has been approved and there is a commitment from the developer to perform the necessary 
off-site improvements. The lines have been televised to confirm capacity for the proposed 
Grocery Store on the corner of Union Avenue and Liberty Street. To date they have complied 
with all the requirements made by the Sewerage Authority, however, have not yet paid any 
connection fees.  
  
 
XVIII.  Adjournment at _4:02_ p.m. 
 

There being no further business, on Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and 
passed by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, two absent, no abstain, the 
meeting was adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 

 
 

      
                                                                                                Respectfully submitted, 
 
             

         
 _____________________________________ 

 David G. Brown, Secretary 
_____________________________ 
Thomas Roguski, Executive Director   
 
 












































































































